
 
 
 
 
 
 

Individual Decision 
 
 
 

The attached report(s) will be taken as  
Individual Portfolio Member Decision(s) on: 

 

Thursday, 22nd March, 2012 
 
 

Ref: Title Portfolio 
Member(s) Page No. 

 

ID2463 West Berkshire Council Response 
to the Consultation on 'Allocation 
of accommodation: guidance for 
local housing authorities in 
England' 

Councillor Alan Law 1 - 12 

 

ID2461 Newbury Business Improvement 
District 

Councillor Pamela 
Bale 

13 - 18 

 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

Individual Executive Member Decision 
 
 

Title of Report: 

West Berkshire Council's response to 
the consultation on "Allocation of 
accommodation: guidance for local 
authorities in England" 

Report to be considered 
by: 

Individual Executive Member Decision 

Date on which Decision 
is to be taken: 

22/03/2012 

Forward Plan Ref: ID 2463 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To agree the Council’s formal response to the CLG 
consultation on proposed housing allocations 
guidance 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

That the Portfolio Holder for Planning, Transport 
Policy, Housing and Economic Development approves 
the Council's response to the consultation paper 
'Allocation of accommodation: guidance for local 
authorities in England' 
 

Reason for decision to be 
taken: 

To enable the submission of a formal response by the 
Council to the Government's consultation paper on 
housing allocations 
 

Other options considered: 
 

No formal submission is made 
 

Key background 
documentation: 

Allocation of accommodation: guidance for local 
authorities, CLG, Jan 2012 
Housing Act 1996 
Homelessness Act 2002 

 
Portfolio Member Details 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Alan Law - Tel (01491) 873614 
E-mail Address: alaw@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Mel Brain 
Job Title: Housing Strategy & Operations Manager 
Tel. No.: 01635 519403 
E-mail Address: mbrain@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 1.

Page 1



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

Implications 
 
Policy: This papers proposes a response to the Government's 

intended policy on housing allocations. The Council is 
currently reviewing it's own Allocations Policy and the 
finalised  guidance will be taken into consideration when 
formulating the detailed Allocations Policy, prior to seeking 
Executive approval.  

Financial: There are no financial implications in this report 

Personnel: N/A 

Legal/Procurement: The Government is proposing changes to statutory 
guidance. The Council will be required to have regard to this 
guidance in exercising their function under Part VI of the 
Housing Act 1996.  

Environmental: N/A 

Property: N/A 

Risk Management: N/A 

Equalities Impact 
Assessment: 

This is a response to a Government-proposed policy. 
Equalities issues have been highlighted where applicable 
within the response. 

 
Consultation Responses 
 
Members:  

Leader of Council: Councillor Graham Jones 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Management 
Commission Chairman: 

Councillor Brian Bedwell 

Ward Members: N/A      

Opposition 
Spokesperson: 

Councillor Tony Vickers - Agrees with the draft response. 
Expressed concern that the proposed guidance may make it 
hard for anyone in social housing to volunteer to foster or 
host a young person needing support. It would seem to 
increase the ghettoisation of social housing. 

Local Stakeholders: N/A 

Officers Consulted: June Graves, Head of Social Care Commissioning & 
Housing 

Cathy Dodson, Housing Options Team Leader 

Elizabeth Wallington, Housing Register Officer 

Karen Felgate, Housing Strategy Team Leader  

Trade Union: N/A      
 

Page 2



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

Is this item subject to call-in? Yes:   No:   

If not subject to call-in please put a cross in the appropriate box: 

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  
Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the Council  
Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position   
Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months 

 

Item is Urgent Key Decision  
Report is to note only  
 
Supporting Information 
 
1. Background 

1.1 The Government published a consultation on ‘Allocation of accommodation: 
guidance for local housing authorities in England’ on 5th January 2012. The new 
guidance is intended to assist authorities to take advantage of the provisions in the 
Localism Act 2011 which give back to local authorities the freedom to manage their 
own waiting lists, and make it easier for them to move existing social tenants to 
more suitable accommodation. It also encourages authorities to make use of the 
existing flexibilities within the allocation legislation to ensure that social homes go to 
people who need and deserve them the most. 

1.2 This guidance replaces the following:  

(a) Code of guidance on the allocation of accommodation, issued 
November 2002  

(b) Code of guidance on choice based lettings, issued August 2008  

(c) Circular 04/2009: Housing allocations – members of the armed forces  

(d) Fair and flexible: statutory guidance on social housing allocations, 
issued December 2009.  

2. Summary of the proposed guidance 

2.1 Definition of an allocation 
For the purposes of Part 6 (Housing Act 1996 (as amended)), the allocation of 
housing by a housing authority is defined in s.159 (2) as:  

(1) selecting a person to be a secure or introductory tenant of housing 
accommodation held by them (i.e. by that authority)  

(2) nominating a person to be a secure or introductory tenant of housing 
accommodation held by another person (i.e. by another housing 
authority); or  

(3) nominating a person to be an assured tenant of housing 
accommodation held by a Private Registered Provider  

Page 3



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

2.2 Allocations to existing tenants 
The guidance proposes changes to the treatment of existing social tenants who 
wish to transfer. Currently, existing tenants can be included under allocations 
defined in Part 6 (see 2.1 above) in the same way as non-tenants. The guidance 
proposes that transfer tenants will be taken outside of Part 6 and that housing 
authorities may set their own transfer policies in relation to these tenants. Current 
tenants who meet one of the reasonable preference groups will continue to be 
eligible for Part 6 allocations. 

2.3 Eligibility and Qualifying Criteria 
Eligibility criteria for allocations will continue to be set nationally. However, the 
Localism Act 2011 introduces a new power for housing authorities in England to 
determine what classes of persons are or are not qualified to be allocated housing 
locally. An applicant who has been deemed not to qualify in the past can make a 
fresh application if the person considers that he or she should now be treated as 
qualifying, but it will be for the applicant to show that his or her circumstances have 
changed. 

2.4 Allocation Schemes 
Housing authorities in England are required to allocate accommodation in 
accordance with a scheme which must be framed to ensure that certain categories 
of applicants are given reasonable preference for an allocation of social housing. 
Local housing authorities must have regard to their homelessness and tenancy 
strategies when framing their allocation scheme. The scheme must include the right 
to review a decision on qualification, including the right to be informed on the 
decision of the review and the grounds for it, as well as the existing right to a review 
on the grounds of eligibility. 

2.5 Statement on Choice 
The requirement for an allocation scheme to contain a statement of the authority’s 
policy on offering a choice of accommodation or the opportunity to express 
preferences about their accommodation is retained (s.166A(2)). However, the 
requirement to provide a copy of this statement to people to whom they owe a 
homelessness duty repealed. This is because, following the changes to the main 
homelessness duty made by the Localism Act 2011, there can no longer be a 
presumption that the homelessness duty will be brought to an end in most cases 
with an allocation under Part 6. 

2.6 Members of the Armed Forces 
New Regulations are proposed to provide that authorities must not disqualify 
members of the armed forces on residency grounds. This prohibition extends to 
applications from former service personnel, where the application is made within 
five years of discharge. These provisions recognise the special position of members 
of the armed forces whose employment requires them to be mobile and who are 
likely therefore to be particularly disadvantaged by residency requirements. 

2.7 Reasonable Preference 
The proposed guidance states that local authorities must give reasonable 
preference to the following of people:  

(a) people who are homeless (within the meaning of Part 7 of the 1996 
Act)  

Page 4



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

(b) people who are owed a duty by any housing authority under section 
190(2), 193(2) or 195(2) of the 1996 Act (or under section 65(2) or 
68(2) of the Housing Act 1985) or who are occupying accommodation 
secured by any housing authority under s.192(3)  

(c) people occupying unsanitary or overcrowded housing or otherwise 
living in unsatisfactory housing conditions  

(d) people who need to move on medical or welfare grounds, including 
grounds relating to a disability, and  

(e) people who need to move to a particular locality in the district of the 
housing authority, where failure to meet that need would cause 
hardship (to themselves or others).  

2.8 There is no requirement for local authorities to give equal weight to the reasonable 
preference categories so long as; overall, the categories receive reasonable 
preference. Nor is there a requirement to give greater priority to households who fall 
within more than one reasonable preference category. 

2.9 Additional Preference 
Housing authorities have the power to frame their allocation scheme so as to give 
additional preference to particular descriptions of people who fall within the 
statutory reasonable preference categories and who have urgent housing needs. All 
housing authorities must consider, in the light of local circumstances, the need to 
give effect to this provision. In the case of former members of the armed forces, 
authorities must ensure that their allocation scheme is framed to give additional 
preference to those applicants who fall within one or more of the reasonable 
preference categories and who have urgent housing needs. 

2.10 Overcrowding 
The proposed guidance states that the bedroom standard is an appropriate 
measure of overcrowding for allocation purposes, and recommends that all housing 
authorities should adopt a similar approach. The bedroom standard allocates a 
separate bedroom to each:  

(i) married or cohabiting couple  

(ii) adult aged 21 years or more  

(iii) pair of adolescents aged 10-20 years of the same sex  

(iv) pair of children aged under 10 years regardless of sex  

2.11 Determining priority between households with similar levels of need 
Authorities may frame their allocation scheme to take into account factors in 
determining relative priorities between applicants in the reasonable (or additional) 
preference categories. Examples of factors which may be taken into account are 
given in the legislation: financial resources, behaviour and local connection. 
However, these examples are not exclusive and authorities may take into account 
other factors instead or as well as these. 

2.12 Local Lettings Policies 
Housing authorities are able to allocate particular accommodation to people of a 

Page 5



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

particular description, whether or not they fall within the reasonable preference 
categories, provided that overall the authority is able to demonstrate that their 
allocation framework complies with the requirement to give reasonable preference 
to certain households. Local lettings policies may be used to achieve a wide variety 
of housing management and policy objectives. Before adopting a local lettings 
policy, authorities should consult with those who are likely to be affected and in 
particular with tenants and residents. Local lettings policies should be published 
and should be revised or revoked where they are no longer appropriate or 
necessary. 

2.13 Households in work or seeking work 
Local authorities are urged to consider how they can use their allocation policies to 
support those households who want to work, as well as those who – while unable to 
engage in paid employment - are contributing to their community in other ways, for 
example, through voluntary work. The flexibilities which authorities are encouraged 
to make use of to meet the needs of service personnel would apply equally here. 

2.14 Carers 
In making accommodation offers to applicants who receive support from carers who 
do not reside with them but may need to stay overnight, housing authorities should, 
wherever possible, take account of the applicant's need for a spare bedroom. 

2.15 Prospective adopters and foster carers 
When considering housing applications from prospective foster carers or adopters 
who would require an extra bedroom to accommodate a foster or adoptive child, 
authorities will wish to weigh up the risk that the application to foster or adopt may 
be unsuccessful (leading to the property being under-occupied), against the wider 
benefits which would be realised if the placement was successful. 

3. Equalities Impact Assessment Outcomes 

3.1 Housing authorities are subject to the general public sector equality duty in the 
Equality Act 2010. As well as the duty to eliminate unlawful discrimination, housing 
authorities are subject to a duty to advance equality of opportunity between persons 
who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not, and to foster 
good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
those who do not. The protected characteristics are age, race, disability, sex, 
pregnancy and maternity, sexual orientation, religion or belief, and gender 
reassignment. When framing the Allocation Policy the Council will need to ensure 
that an Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken. 

4. The Consultation Response 

4.1 The consultation paper asks 15 questions about the proposed guidance. The 
questions do not cover all aspects of the proposed guidance. The response has 
been prepared in accordance with these questions. Responses must be submitted 
to CLG by 30th March 2012. 

5. Recommendation 

5.1 That the Portfolio Holder for Planning & Housing approves the attached response 
as the Council’s formal submission to the consultation. 

Page 6



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

Appendices 
 
 
Appendix A - ‘Allocation of accommodation: guidance for local housing authorities in 
England’ consultation -West Berkshire Council Response 

Page 7



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

 APPENDIX A 
 

‘Allocation of accommodation: guidance for local housing authorities in England’ 
consultation 

 
West Berkshire Council Response 

 
1. Does your allocation scheme/transfer policy already provide for social tenants who 

are under-occupying to be given priority? 
 
Yes. The Council proactively works with tenants and providers of social housing to 
ensure that tenants who are under-occupying, and wish to move, have sufficient 
priority on the housing register to secure alternative accommodation. This ensures 
that family-sized accommodation is freed up and that we make best use of existing 
accommodation. 
 

2. Do you intend to revise your allocation scheme in order to make it easier for under-
occupying social tenants to downsize to more appropriately sized accommodation? 
 
No. The Council already ensures that it is easy for under-occupying social tenants 
to downsize to more appropriately sized accommodation. 
 

3.  If so, what changes to your allocation scheme will you be considering – to make it 
easier for under-occupying tenants to downsize? 
 
If Government wish to make it easier for under-occupying tenants to downsize, they 
could consider providing funding for under-occupation schemes. The biggest barrier 
for the majority of tenants wishing to move, particularly those who are older or 
vulnerable, is the ability to arrange removals and disconnection/reconnection of 
services etc. These tenants would benefit from a ‘hand-holding’ service to give them 
support with the practical aspects of moving. Changes to the Allocation Policy will 
not achieve this. 
 

4.  Do you agree that members of the armed forces and former service personnel 
should not be disqualified on residency grounds? Is 5 years from the date of 
discharge an appropriate time limit for this restriction? If not, what would be a more 
appropriate period? 
 
This Council currently holds an open waiting list. This does not prevent armed 
forces and former service personnel from joining the register. It does however, 
award points for local connection but these are not currently applied to service 
personnel living in tied military accommodation within the district. The proposal to 
prohibit local authorities from applying residency qualifications on service personnel 
could have disproportionate impacts on local authorities with service bases within 
their district, and on authorities that are seen as desirable areas to live in. It may 
also raise false expectations about the likelihood of re-housing given the shortage of 
affordable accommodation. 
 
Five years appears to be an inordinately long time following discharge from the 
armed services. Twelve months would be a more appropriate time period, as this is 
sufficient to enable service personnel to achieve a local connection with a specific 

Page 8



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

area upon discharge. 
 
Will the prohibition be applicable to all discharges i.e. will it also be applicable to 
those are discharged due to misconduct?  This would appear to reward service 
personnel who have demonstrated misconduct at the expense of other residents 
who do not meet residency qualifications? 
 

5.  Does the draft guidance provide sufficient clarity on how to implement the new 
power for housing authorities to set their own allocations qualification criteria? If not, 
in what areas would more guidance be useful? 
 
Yes 
 

6. Do you agree that the bedroom standard is an appropriate measure of 
overcrowding for the purpose of according reasonable preference? If not, what 
measure do you consider would be more appropriate? 
 
The Council welcomes the clarification of which standard to apply when measuring 
overcrowding for the purposes of according reasonable preference. The standard 
appears to differ very slightly from that applied to Local Housing Allowance and it 
would be preferable that the two standards were the same to ease confusion. 
 

7. Should this guidance provide advice on how to define ‘overcrowding’ for the 
purpose of according additional preference? If so, would an appropriate measure be 
two bedrooms or more short of the bedroom standard? 
 
Yes. If local authorities are expected to include overcrowding in their criteria for 
additional preference, as well as reasonable preference, it would be beneficial to 
have guidance on the definition of overcrowding for additional preference purposes. 
The Council considers that lacking two or more bedrooms as assessed by the 
bedroom standard would be an appropriate measure for according additional 
preference. 
 

8. How does your allocation scheme currently define ‘overcrowding’ for allocation 
purposes? Does it, for example, use the bedroom standard, the statutory 
overcrowding standards in Part 10 of the Housing Act 1985, or another definition? If 
the last of these, please provide brief details. 
 
The Council’s current allocation schemes adopts the Local Housing Allowance 
bedroom standard and awards a set amount of points per bedroom lacking. 
 

9.  The Government proposes to regulate to require housing authorities to frame their 
allocation scheme to provide for former service personnel with urgent housing 
needs to be given additional preference for social housing. Do you agree with this 
proposal? 
 
Additional preference should be awarded on the basis of housing need only. The 
requirement to frame the allocation scheme specifically to provide for former service 
personnel with urgent housing needs is unnecessary. Former service personnel 
have already been given access to a waiting list from which they may otherwise 
have been excluded and any award of additional priority should be on the basis of 
housing need only, in line with other members of the scheme. 

Page 9



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

 
10. Does your allocation scheme already make use of the flexibilities within the 

allocation legislation to provide for those who have served in the armed forces to be 
given greater priority for social housing? If so, how does your scheme provide for 
this? 
 
No. The Council’s allocation scheme gives priority to those in greatest housing 
need, irrespective of their employment background. By providing greater priority for 
armed forces personnel on the basis of their career choice may effectively prevent a 
household in greater housing need from accessing accommodation. 
  

11. If not, do you intend to take advantage of the flexibilities in the allocation legislation 
to provide for former members of the armed forces to be given greater priority for 
social housing? If so, what changes might you be considering? 
 
The Council will have full regard to the statutory guidance in drafting its Allocations 
Policy. No decisions have yet been made in respect of armed forces personnel. 
 

12. Does your allocation scheme already provide for some priority to be given to people 
who are in work, seeking work, or otherwise contributing to the community? If so, 
how does your scheme provide for this? 
 
No, however this will be considered by Members as part of the review into the 
Council’s Allocation Policy. 
 

13. If not, do you intend to revise your allocation scheme to provide for more priority to 
be given to people who are in work, seeking work, or otherwise contributing to the 
community? If so, what changes might you be considering? 
 
The Council will be giving consideration to providing more priority through its 
Allocation Policy to people who are in work, seeking work or otherwise contributing 
to the community as part of its current review of the Allocation Policy. The Council is 
concerned that introducing priority for this would create a large administrative 
burden which would be difficult to manage, particularly as people move in and out of 
work, and this may be an area that the Statutory Guidance may wish to provide 
greater clarification on.  
 
The Council does, where appropriate, use Local lettings Plans for specific 
developments in partnership with its Registered Providers. Some of these Local 
Lettings Plans do give preference to households that are economically active in 
order to create a balanced community. 
 

14. Are there other ways in which housing authorities can frame their allocation scheme 
to meet the needs of prospective adopters and foster carers? 
 
Any provision for carers and prospective adoptive/foster parents needs to be 
carefully balanced against current Housing Benefit regulations (particularly in 
relation to under-occupation) and the significant demand for a limited supply of 
social housing. Consideration also needs to be given to the fact that a large number 
of households on the housing register are over-crowded. 
 

Page 10



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

15. Does the draft guidance provide sufficient clarity on the extent of flexibilities 
available to housing authorities when framing their allocation scheme? 
 
Yes 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

Individual Executive Member Decision 
 
 

Title of Report: 
Newbury Business Improvement 
District 

Report to be considered 
by: 

Individual Executive Member Decision 

Date on which Decision 
is to be taken: 

22 March 2012 

Forward Plan Ref: ID2461 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To note that a number of Council properties, including 
Market Street and West Street House, are included 
within the defined Newbury Business Improvement 
District area.  
 

Recommended Action: 
 

To note the impact on the Council's NNDR (£13,559.50 
per annum for the next five years) if the BID is 
successful.  
 

Reason for decision to be 
taken: 

To ensure that the Council supports the BID as a means 
of increasing footfall and improving the overall appeal of 
the Town Centre.  
 

Other options considered: 
 

N/A 
 

Key background 
documentation: 

Draft Newbury BID document 

 
Portfolio Member Details 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Pamela Bale - Tel (0118) 9842980 
E-mail Address: pbale@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Andy Day 
Job Title: Head of Policy and Communication 
Tel. No.: 01635 519459 
E-mail Address: aday@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 2.

Page 13



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

Implications 
 
Policy: This initiative accords with the Council's aspirations of 

having a thriving Town Centre. 

Financial: The Council's contribution to the BID will be £13,559.50 per 
annum for the next five years. 

Personnel: N/A 

Legal/Procurement: The BID and the ballot is being conducted in accordance 
with the Business Improvement Districts (England) 
regulations 2004. 

Environmental: N/A 

Property: N/A 

Risk Management: N/A 

Equalities Impact 
Assessment: 

Stage 1 EIA attached as Appendix A.  

 
Consultation Responses 
 
Members:  

Leader of Council: Councillor Graham Jones via the circulation of this ID. 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Management 
Commission Chairman: 

Councillor Brian Bedwell via the circulation of this ID. 

Ward Members: All Members via the circulation of this ID. 

Opposition 
Spokesperson: 

Councillor Jeff Brooks via the circulation of this ID. 

Local Stakeholders:       

Officers Consulted:       

Trade Union: N/A 
 

Is this item subject to call-in? Yes:   No:   

If not subject to call-in please put a cross in the appropriate box: 

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  
Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the Council  
Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position   
Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months 

 

Item is Urgent Key Decision  
Report is to note only  
 

Page 14



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

Supporting Information 
 
1. Background 

1.1 A Business Improvement District (BID) is a business controlled initiative which 
provides local organisations with the power to raise funds locally, with the aim of 
improving their own business environment.  It is an investment scheme in which 
local businesses agree how their money should be invested to benefit themselves, 
their employees, customers and clients. 

1.2 The purpose of a Business Improvement District is to give business real control 
over the development and delivery of projects and monitor their results.  It is aimed 
at increasing the footfall in the area, leading to an increase in business 
performance and improvement in the business environment.  It is flexible enough to 
address the issue of individual sectors whilst offering a fair system – those that 
invest, benefit. 

1.4 BIDs do not affect the level or quality of service provided by the local authority to 
the area. A BID is initiated, financed and led by the commercial sector, providing 
additional or improved services as identified and requested by local businesses, to 
the baseline services provided by the local authority in that area.  

1.5 Over 130 Business Improvement Districts up and down the country are active.   
District schemes are already operating in the south of England such as Reading, 
Winchester, Portsmouth, Camberley and Dorchester. These areas have not only 
reported increases in footfall and trading figures but more inward investment and 
better communications between business and local government. 

2. Newbury Business District 

2.1 A BID for Newbury has been developed by the Newbury Bid which is an 
independent, private, not for profit company.  Newbury BID, if the ballot is 
successful, will be managed by the businesses which pay the levy and it will 
operate solely to deliver projects that are paid for and requested by businesses. 

2.2 The BID levy is based on a levy on the rateable value of the business unit and the 
funds will be kept in a separate bank account to be invested within the BID area.  
Businesses with a rateable value of £5,000 and under are exempt although they 
can opt to make voluntary contributions. 

2.3 The BID covers the heart of Newbury Town Centre and contains the main retail, 
leisure and commercial areas and includes a number of Council assets such as 
Market Street, West Street House and West Point Council Offices, the Museum 
and a number of car parks.  The area was defined through consultation with 
businesses to identify the commonality of the issues that affect their environment. 

2.4 The Newbury BID will operate for five years.  After this time business will have to 
vote again on whether the BID will continue.  Subject to a majority of the business 
voting in favour of the Newbury BID all eligible business or properties in Newbury 
Town Centre will be billed for 1% of their rateable value each year for a period of 
five years.  Businesses or properties that are occupied wholly or mainly by a charity 
as office accommodation for the purposes of that charity  or clubs and societies that 
are not for profit and have no other means of income than voluntary subscriptions 

Page 15



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

will be eligible to receive a 50% relief from the BID levy.  The Council’s annual 
contribution will be £13,559.50. 

2.5 Under BID legislation, all qualifying business will be asked to vote on whether they 
want a BID for Newbury Town Centre to go ahead.  A postal ballot will be managed 
by West Berkshire Council.  Ballot papers will be sent out on 2 April and must be 
returned by 30 April 2012.  The results of the BID ballot will be declared by 2 May 
2012. For the BID to go ahead two conditions must be met: 

  (i) More than 50% of business who vote must vote in favour. 

(ii) Of the business that vote, the YES votes must represent more than 
50% of the total rateable value of all votes cast. 

2.6 The Council will be part of the ballot by virtue of the under-mentioned Council 
assets being included in the approved BID area: 

• Kennet Centre Car Park, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5EN 
• Council Offices, Market Street, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5LD 
• Omnibus Station, Market Street, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5DP 
• Car Park, Market Street, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5DP 
• Waterside Youth Centre, Waldegrave Place, Northbrook Street, Newbury, 

Berkshire, RG14 1DS 
• Northcroft Car Park At, Pembroke Road, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 1BX 
• Car Park, Pembroke Road, Newbury, Berkshire 
• West Street House, West Street, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 1BZ 
• West Point, 46 - 48, West Street, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 1BD 
• 92, West Street, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 1HA 
• Newbury Central Car Park North, Wharf Road, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5QP 
• Newbury Central Library, The Wharf, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5AU 
• The Museum, Wharf Street, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5AS 
• 1-8, Wharf Street, Rear, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5AN 
• Public Convenience At The Wharf, Wharf Street, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5AS 
• Tourist Information Centre, 7-8, The Wharf, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5AS 
• The Wharf Car Park, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5AS 
• Car Park, Northcroft Lane, Newbury, Berkshire 
• 20, Oxford Road, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 1PA 
• Speenhamland Primary School, Pelican Lane, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 1NU 
• Suite1, Old Town Hall, Market Place, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 5AA 
• Car Park, Pelican Lane, Newbury, Berkshire 

 
2.7 If the BID is successful then the need to support the Town Centre Partnership 

(should this choose to continue) will need to be reassessed. 
 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Equality Impact Assessment – Stage 1 

Page 16



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

APPENDIX A 
 

Equality Impact Assessment – Stage One 
 

Name of item being assessed: Newbury Business Improvement District 

Version and release date of 
item (if applicable): 

 

Owner of item being assessed: Andy Day 

Name of assessor: Andy Day 

Date of assessment: 2 February 2012 

 
1. What are the main aims of the item? 

This item is concerned with promoting Newbury Town Centre as a thriving shopping and 
tourist area for local people and visitors alike.  This proposal is not expected to have any 
specific impact on any particular groups. 
 

2. Note which groups may be affected by the item, consider how they may be 
affected and what sources of information have been used to determine 
this. (Please demonstrate consideration of all strands – age; disability; gender 
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity; race; 
religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation) 

Group 
Affected What might be the effect? Information to support this. 

   

   

   

   

   

   

Further comments relating to the item: 

 
 
3. Result (please tick by double-clicking on relevant box and click on ‘checked’) 

 High Relevance - This needs to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact Assessment 

 Medium Relevance - This needs to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact 
Assessment 

 Low Relevance - This needs to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact Assessment 

 No Relevance - This does not need to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact 
Assessment 

 

Page 17



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 22 March 2012 

For items requiring a Stage 2 equality impact assessment, begin the planning of this 
now, referring to the equality impact assessment guidance and Stage 2 template. 
 
4. Identify next steps as appropriate: 

Stage Two required  

Owner of Stage Two assessment:  

Timescale for Stage Two assessment:  

Stage Two not required:  
 
Name:  Date:  
 

Page 18


	Agenda
	1. West Berkshire Council Response to the Consultation on 'Allocation of accommodation: guidance for local housing authorities in England'
	2. Newbury Business Improvement District

